# OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 106 Hancock Road Peterborough, New Hampshire

## CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL BOARD

## Tuesday, October 4, 2016

#### School Board Meeting <u>Minutes</u>

#### **ADMINISTRATION**

Kimberly Saunders, Supt. Dr. Ann Allwarden, Asst. Supt. Marian Alese, B.A. Tim Markley, H.R. Dr. Rick Matte, Student Services Nicky Fraley, FES Amy Janoch, HES Brian Pickering, CVHS John Reitnauer, ATC

Maeve Newman, Student Rep. Patrick Cogan, CVEA Rep.

Stephan Morrissey, Linda Quintanilha,

Rich Cahoon, Richard Dunning,

Bernd Foecking, Tom Kelly,

Janine Lesser, David Martz,

Kristen Reilly, Pierce Rigrod,

Crista Salamy, Myron Steere

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance Myron Steere called the meeting to order at 7:04 p.m. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

- 2. Accept School Board Meeting Minutes (Board Vote Required)
  - a. September 20, 2016

Stephan Morrissey moved to accept the minutes of September 20, 2016. Dick Dunning second. Linda Quintanilha and Tom Kelly abstained. All else in favor. Motion carried.

#### 3. Points of Pride

BOARD

Kimberly Saunders reported that a variety of teachers and support staff are participating in OGAP training. It is fascinating training looking at how students learn mathematics.

The ConVal High School Football team is 4-1 with their next game scheduled for this Saturday in Hollis.

**4.** Public Comment None.

#### 5. Consent Agenda

a. Personnel

1) Retirement – Laura Doell – June 2017

Tim Markley referenced the retirement of Laura Doell and Mary Lou O'Neil for June 2017.

#### Stephan Morrissey moved to accept the retirements as read. Dick Dunning second. Unanimous.

Stephan Morrissey moved to allow the exception for payback. Dick Dunning second. Unanimous.

2) Retirement – Linda Tenney and Mary Ellen Stanley – June 2018

Tim Markley referenced the June 2018 Retirements of Linda Tenney, Mary Ellen Stanley, Joan Bando, Pete Ketchum, Eileen Couture, Katherine Fox, and Ken Cloutier.

Stephan Morrissey moved to accept the retirements as read. Dick Dunning second. Unanimous.

3) Notice of Stipend Positions – Non-Athletic and Supplemental Tim Markley referenced these positions for notification purposes only.

4) Job Description –Careers in Education (2nd Read/Adoption) Dick Dunning moved to adopt the job description as written. Stephan Morrissey second. Unanimous.

## b. Enrollment Report – October 1, 2016

Tim Markley shared October 1<sup>st</sup> enrollment numbers. It was noted that Dublin 5<sup>th</sup> grade students attend SMS rather than DCS; it was parentally driven.

#### c. Board Requests

## MISSION STATEMENT

The ConVal Regional School District, in partnership with its member communities, will inspire all learners to achieve academically, contribute to the global community, and thrive as independent and productive citizens.

Kimberly Saunders referenced board requests.

#### 6. Superintendent's Report and Presentation of Business a. ATC SMART Goal & Presentation

John Reitnauer shared a presentation on the ATC. Mr. Reitnauer noted that his report shares a brief history of the ATC, its partnerships, the plan for programming, and the work that faculty has done to develop pathways for students to follow. Running Start credits will be available to students with credits that will be transferable to hundreds of colleges. A student could leave ConVal with six college credits upon graduating. Five of the eight programs have Running Start credits associated. The cost to the student is \$150.00.

School Counselors and Mr. Reitnauer have spent time looking at Running Start courses and sharing this information with students to bolster enrollment.

Committees that have been dormant are reorganizing to meet again. Stephan Morrissey will serve on the Regional Advisory Committee on behalf of the School Board. Equipment needs, curriculum, and job viability of the program will be reviewed.

Program Advisory Committees will meet as well. Without advisories in place, Perkins Grant Funding would not be available. New programs include computer networking and teacher education.

How are the new programs and potential new programs dovetailing with the space at the high school? John Reitnauer said that he does not envision any new programming coming on board soon.

Does the potential bond in 2018 tie in? There are no expectations for change in space with the prospect of a bond.

Rich Cahoon commended John for the excellent report.

Discussion took place about students taking CTE courses. The conversation extended to completer programs.

Is there the potential for other Running Start courses? Brian Pickering said that it would be dependent upon the tie in with a college to allow for college credit offering.

Mr. Reitnauer said that he would like to see a 5% increase in CTE enrollment numbers.

In the past, the ATC operated on its own island. Mr. Reitnauer has worked in conjunction with the school counseling department and joined to promote CTE offerings.

The way that CTE course offerings are weighted is discouraging. How can we encourage students to explore course offerings without the concern that it will harm their GPA and college potential?

Mr. Reitnauer reported the goal to create a 5 year plan for programming for the region 14 ATC. The plan to get there was outlined in his SMART goal.

#### b. Monthly Events Calendar

The School Board Budget Work Session scheduled on Saturday, November 5<sup>th</sup> will begin at 8:30 a.m. and end by 2:00 p.m.

#### c. Accept Gift/Donation (Board Vote Required)

 The South Meadow School Band requests authorization to accept a gift/donation totaling \$8,388.39 from The Uplift Music Festival, West Peterborough, for the purpose of providing color instruments for the SMS Band Program.

Stephan Morrissey motioned to accept the donation with thanks. Dick Dunning second. Unanimous.

#### d. Executive Summary

Kimberly Saunders referenced her Executive Weekly Summary.

#### 7. Reports

#### a. Student Representative - Maeve Newman

Maeve Newman reported on TASC talks. She shared that community members come and speak to the student body. Last week, a musician met with students. Tomorrow, a 13 time para-Olympian will meet with students. Homecoming is next weekend. Student Council is planning a tailgating party.

PowerSchool rolled out last week; it is more user friendly.

#### **b. Teacher Representative** – Patrick Cogan

Patrick Cogan reported that the CVEA has started to hold listening forums. Members will meet with members and nonmembers to receive both positive and negative feedback. A focus on teaching and learning priorities is part of these sessions. Data will be gathered and shared with the SAU.

#### c. Education Committee – Crista Salamy

Crista Salamy reported that discussion on PACE vs. IB took place at the last meeting. Some work toward PACE has taken place; an application to the State for PACE will be submitted. IB might be considered for exploration in the ATC. Self-contained classroom discussion took place. Clarity is needed for future discussion.

Balanced Assessment discussion took place and tailed into multi-age and multi-grade conversation. How small a school is too small? Which grades should remain self-standing and not joined with another grade?

## 1) Athletic Fees (Board Vote Required)

Crista Salamy asked for a motion on not charging athletic fees.

Rich Cahoon moved to suspend sports fees for the remainder of this year. Linda Quintanilha second.

Myron Steere reported that the vote to suspend fees was for a period of two years and should have been revisited this year.

Crista said that additional fees might be considered; co-curricular, Running Start fees, etc. Rich Cahoon confirmed that this vote is for athletic fees.

David Martz wanted to be clear that sports fees would be reinitiated next fall if nothing else is done. Confirmed. In favor of suspending sports fees for the remainder of the year? **Unanimous.** 

### 8. Old Business

### a. NHSBA Resolutions

Kimberly Saunders reported that she nor Rich did not receive anything from the Board on resolutions.

#### b. 2<sup>nd</sup> Read Policy/Adoption (Board Vote Required)

IKFB – Graduation Regalia

#### Rich Cahoon moved to adopt this policy as drafted. Stephan Morrissey second. Unanimous.

#### 9. New Business

#### a. 1<sup>st</sup> Read Policy

- IMDA – Patriotic Exercises

Rich Cahoon referenced this policy for a first read.

### b. Voting at Pierce School

Kimberly Saunders reported that in the past, for national elections, Pierce School students have not attended school because the school is used for voting. Options include not having school at all, having school, or having a half-day of school. The multi-purpose room is accessible from the outside without going into the school.

The concern is that people will be in the school that are not monitored. A police presence can be hired.

Rich Cahoon suggested that this day be used for fall field trips.

Ann Allwarden reported how elections were conducted when she was principal in the past.

The concern is that the busiest voting time coincides with dismissal time.

Dick Dunning supported having school and putting in place the resources needed for it to be safe and a success.

Dick Dunning moved to keep school open for the day and that resources be provided by the Town of Bennington. Dick said that the district should not have to pick up the cost.

#### Rich Cahoon second. Unanimous.

Rich Cahoon asked if Budget & Property could look at how elections are run and see that they are the same for all towns. Confirmed.

#### c. Admin Evaluation

Kimberly Saunders reported that the evaluation tool was put together in conjunction with administrators. This will be used for building level administrators.

#### 10. Public Comment

None.

#### 11. Approval of Manifests (Board Vote Required)

Marian Alese certified that manifests listed totaling \$451,995.07 and Payroll 7 totaling \$1,620,120.94 have been reviewed by her and found to be proper charges against the Contoocook Valley School District for goods and or services received and have been properly processed prior to their submittal to the School Board.

Stephan Morrissey moved to accept the manifests as read. Dick Dunning second. Unanimous.

#### 12. Non-Public Session: RSA 91-A:3,II (If Required)

- a. Negotiations
- b. Personnel

Stephan Morrissey moved to enter into non-public session in accordance with RSA 91-A:3,II at 8:33 p.m. for negotiations. Unanimous on a roll call vote.

Stephan Morrissey moved to exit non-public session at 8:57 p.m. Second. Unanimous.

Stephan Morrissey moved to enter into non-public session in accordance with RSA 91-A:3,II for personnel at 8:58 p.m. Unanimous on a roll call vote.

Stephan Morrissey motioned to exit non-public session at 9:24 p.m. Linda Quintanilha second. Unanimous.

Stephan Morrissey motioned to seal the non-public minutes for negotiations and personnel in perpetuity.

## Second. Unanimous.

Motion to adjourn at 9:25 p.m. Second. Unanimous.

Respectfully submitted,

Brenda Marschok